MINUTES OF THE SENATE PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELFARE COMMITTEE.

The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Senator Susan Wagle at 1:30 p.m. on March 13, 2003 in Room 231-N of the Capitol.

All members were present except: Senator Nancey Harrington

Committee staff present: Ms. Emalene Correll, Kansas Legislative Research Department

Mr. Norm Furse, Revisor of Statutes

Ms. Margaret Cianciarulo, Administrative Secretary

Conferees appearing before the committee: Ms. Phyllis Gilmore, Executive Director of the

Behavioral Sciences Regulatory Board

Dr. Larry Hays, PhD, Board Member and Psychology Representative on the Behavioral Sciences Regulatory

Board

Ms. Sky Westerlund, Executive Director of the KS Chapter,

National Association of Social Workers

Others attending: See attached guest list

Hearing on HB2234 - an act relating to the behavioral sciences; licensure reciprocity

Upon calling the meeting to order, the Chair announced there would be a hearing on <u>HB2234</u>, an act relating to the behavioral sciences; licensure reciprocity and asked Mr. Norm Furse, Revisor of Statutes, to give a brief overview of the bill. He stated that this bill was a request of the Board of Behavioral Sciences for what amounts to pulling together the various reciprocities statutes that the Board has various licensees under its jurisdiction. He went on to explain the sections including:

Section 1 - is a new section and provides that the behavioral sciences' regulatory board may issue a license to an individual who is currently registered, certified, or licensed to practice psychology at the masters level in another jurisdiction if the Board determines and then set out a list of standards that are similar to other standards in the bill relating to other licensees. (The basic standard is that the other jurisdictions are substantially equivalent to the requirements of this state for this kind of licensure. In this case of a master level psychologist, for them to obtain reciprocity licensure in the other states' requirements for registration or licensure, it would have to be substantially equivalent to the requirements in this state (found on page 1, lines 20 and 21).

Section 2 - refers to a similar kind of reciprocity language for the practice of professional counseling in another jurisdiction, and again, the key element here, other than the lack of disciplinary action versus a good standing in the other state, is on lines 19 and 20 where the requirements of the other jurisdiction are substantially equivalent to the requirements of our state clinical professional counselor terms are discussed in sub (b) and sub (a) discusses the professional counselor.

Section 3 - beginning on page 3, the House deleted from the bill. This section related to just generally the requirements for reciprocity and deleting the new language on page 4 beginning on line 15.

Section 4 - this new section becomes Section 3, on page 5 and is related to the practice of marriage and family therapy and sets out similar standards to the other licensure categories, referring to lines 37 and 38. Sub (b) is the clinical licensure for marriage and family therapists and again the language is set out relating to the requirements for reciprocity licensure.

CONTINUATION SHEET

MINUTES OF THE SENTE PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELFARE COMMITTEE at on March 13, 2003 in Room 231-N of the Capitol. Page 2

Section 5 - relates generally to the Board's section and psychologists at the doctoral level.

In closing, Mr. Furse stated that the language is closely uniform in all of these reciprocity cases and referred to line 32.

As there were no questions of Mr. Furse, the Chair recognized the first proponent, Ms. Phyllis Gillmore, Executive Director of the Behavioral Sciences Regulatory Board (BSRB) who gave a short history of the Board and stated that the bill was submitted as a result of Board discussion and as a response to the need to remove some of the barriers for individuals coming to Kansas to reside and practice as mental health professionals. A copy of her testimony is (<u>Attachment 1</u>) attached hereto and incorporated into the Minutes as referenced.

The second proponent conferee to testify was Dr. Larry Hays, PhD, Board Member and psychology representative on the Behavioral Sciences Regulatory Board who stated that a national problem in many professional licensure fields, is the issue of mobility from one state to another and a major difficulty is securing appropriate references and attestations of supervisory experiences that might have occurred 10, 20, or 30 years ago. He also provided what he felt would be consequences to the Kansas current licensing statutes for mental health professionals when compared with the proposed bill. A copy of his testimony is (Attachment 2) attached hereto and incorporated into the Minutes as referenced.

The third and final proponent conferee to testify was Ms. Sky Westerland, Executive Director of the Kansas Chapter, National Association of Social Workers (KNASW), who also gave a short history of their chapter and stated that KNASW and BRSB have successfully reached agreement on a proposed amendment to this bill. She stated that the amendment addresses their mutual desire to remove unnecessary barriers for licensed clinical social workers moving from other states and seeking clinical licensure in Kansas. A copy of her testimony and amendment are (<u>Attachment 3</u>) attached hereto and incorporated into the Minutes as referenced.

As there was no proponent or neutral testimony offered, the Chair the Committee for questions or comments of Ms. Westerlund:

- 1) Senator Salmans asked when a person comes out of a school or a jurisdiction that does not have a clinical master social work per say how do you incorporate into the system to determine where they will be placed, the status of a person who had gone overseas to do missionary work for a number of years, and how many people are certified clinical social workers;
- 2) Senator Haley questioned her proposed K-KNASW language for the bill, stating that (1) was a little subjective (that the Board will be making what is a substantial equivalent determination as to what we need in Kansas based upon what another jurisdiction has) and (2) is well-defined but what exactly would be necessary for licensure), are there known jurisdictions that would apply for (1) to show what is an example of what this substantial equivalency is, and are any of these much more than the components found in (2) (greater or less). Ms. Jennifer Springer, Credentialing Specialist, was introduced by Ms. Westerlund to address the questions addressing (1) and (2). Dr. Hays also provided a response.
- 3) Senator Wagle questioned why Ms. Westerlund opposed the language for social workers in Section 3 and requested replacing it with something that is reciprocity for a licensed clinical specialist and yet nothing was offered in the bill for other social workers. She asked Ms. Gillmore how the Board felt about this, does this lower the standards to a reciprocity, did they have a statute or rules and regs (the standards by which you would allow someone to practice on these levels in Kansas), is a copy available, and where specifically was the disagreement. She then addressed Dr. Hays, asking if he had stated he had worked within a committee to develop this as it was presented to the legislature and asking if he was involved in the social work section?

CONTINUATION SHEET

MINUTES OF THE SENTE PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELFARE COMMITTEE at on March 13, 2003 in Room 231-N of the Capitol. Page 3

4) A discussion ensued between Mr. Furse, Ms. Correll, Senators Brungardt and Wagle when Senator Brungardt asked if he understood Ms. Westerlund to say that clinical social workers should have the degree and the national exam, and someone with those qualifications should be able to come to the state of Kansas. Ms. Westerlund said yes, but with a couple of additions, explaining the amendment and the language and gave an example of a person who predates both the national test and the current standards. Senator Brungardt asked what was the justification and Ms. Westerlund discussed the 5-year and 10-year threshold. Ms. Correll commented on the current law regarding the baccalaureate at the masters level (line 26) and assumed that this would be retained in the amendment, but then she said after reading the requirements the Board is proposing at this same level, she found the Board's higher than the existing law. Mr. Furse referred to page 4, line 20, stating there is an "or" so the requirements are either one "or" two. Also discussed were the exemptions for those grandfathred in after 1975, and they no longer have the category of social work specialist. For the Committee's information, Mr. Furse stated that the current law is in the strike type on page 3, lines 6 through 14, and questioned if there was concern about the clinical specialist social workers' language, and why was the other part that relates to the master social worker deleted (the struck lines 15 through 30, relating to the master social worker) by the House Committee. Senator Wagle asked if this was Ms. Westerlund's intention. Ms. Westerlund said they did not request this specifically, but they did point out that because if you are licensed in another jurisdiction and come into this state, you can show a substantial equivalency fairly easily. Senator Salmans made a suggestion to delete the first half and leave in the second half in. Mr. Furse, said if the Committee would allow him, he would set up an amendment for the Committee to look at, that doesn't have all of the strike type, based on Senator Salmans recommendation. The Chair recognized Ms. Correll who said she had a technical question regarding earlier discussion concerning the clinical speciality license, stating that the law allows for others, but at this time this is the only speciality license and asked Ms. Westerlund if she wanted to leave the law flexible enough to allow for others (currently the law speaks of the social work specialty and then to the clinical social work specialty, and it's not clear that those are the same people).

Action on <u>HB2169</u> - An act concerning the Kansas Board of Examiners in optometry relating to the fees charged and collected by the Board

The Chair then asked the Committee to look at <u>HB2169</u>, the bill they heard on March 12, 2003, and to refer to the memo in front of them from Ms. Penny Bowie, Executive Officer, Board of Examiners in Optometry, who is responding to the questions raised at the hearing regarding the charitable services and about the biennial renewal of licenses which, for the number of optometrists, is fine. A copy of her memo is (Attachment 4) attached hereto and incorporated into the Minutes as referenced.

She then asked if the Committee would feel comfortable acting on this bill. The Chair recognized Mr. Furse who stated that he had visited with the Secretary after the meeting and referred them to the bill, page 4, lines 12 and 13, where it says "the board may provide our rules and regs that licenses issued or renewed may expire less than two years from the date of issuance or renewal," but they don't have authority for them to prorate fees and that they were planning on prorating fees, so this should be added after renewal if this was the case (and for the proration of license fees accordingly).

Senator Brungardt made the motion to adopt this amendment shown above suggested by Mr. Furse, seconded by Senator Steineger. The motion carried.

Senator Brungardt made the motion to move it out favorably and Senator Salmans seconded. The motion carried

Adjournment

The Committee adjourned at 2:30 p.m. The next meeting is scheduled for March 18, 2003.

CONTINUATION SHEET

MINUTES OF THE SENTE PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELFARE COMMITTEE at on March 13, 2003 in Room 231-N of the Capitol. Page 4